Wiltshire Council

~—"->~. Where everybody matters

AGENDA

Meeting: Eastern Area Planning Committee

Place: Council Chamber, Wiltshire Council Offices, Browfort, Devizes
Date: Thursday 10 June 2010

Time: 6.00 pm

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Anna Thurman, of Democratic and
Members’ Services, County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line (01225)
718379 or email anna.thurman@uwiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:
Clir Philip Brown Clir Chris Humphries
Clir Peggy Dow Clir Laura Mayes
Clir Nick Fogg Clir Christopher Williams
Clir Richard Gamble Clir Jane Burton

ClIr Charles Howard

Substitutes:
Clir Jerry Kunkler Clir Jeffrey Ody
Clir Christopher Newbury Clir Lionel Grundy OBE
Clir George Jeans Clir Peter Colmer

Cllr Jemima Milton CliIr Nigel Carter




AGENDA

Part |

Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public

Apologies for Absence

Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 7 - 14)

To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting
held on 29.04.2010 (copy herewith).

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of personal or prejudicial interests or dispensations
granted by the Standards Committee.

Chairman's Announcements

Public Participation

Members of the public who wish to speak either in favour or against an
application on this agenda are asked to register in person no later than 5:50pm
on the day of the meeting.

The chairman will allow up to 3 speakers in favour and up to 3 speakers against
an application. Each speaker will be given up to 3 minutes and invited to speak
immediately prior to the item being considered. The rules on public participation
in respect of planning applications are detailed in the Council’s Planning Code
of Good Practice.

Planning Applications

To consider and determine planning applications in the attached schedule.

6.1. E/M0/0107/FUL - Full planning application for: Retrospective change of
use of land and buildings for the parking and storage of vehicles,
plant and equipment pending preparation for sale or export.
Improvements to road junction. At: Bromham House Farm, Devizes
Road, BROMHAM SN15 2DX (Pages 15 - 20)




6.2. E/10/0071/FUL - Full planning application for: Demolition of existing
beef cattle buildings and replacement with new dairy complex and
agriculturally tied dwelling. At:: Sharcott Pennings Farm, Wilcot Road

PEWSEY (Pages 21 - 40)

Urgent items

Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be
taken as a matter of urgency.

Part II

ltem during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should be excluded
because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed

None



This page is intentionally left blank



Wiltsniiie Coundcil

~—-_ Where everybody matters

EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING
HELD ON 29 APRIL 2010 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER, WILTSHIRE COUNCIL
OFFICES, BROWFORT, DEVIZES.

Present:

Clir Philip Brown (Chairman), Clir Mark Connolly, Clir Peggy Dow, Clir Nick Fogg,
Clir Richard Gamble, CliIr Lionel Grundy OBE (Reserve), Clir Charles Howard,
Clir Chris Humphries and Clir Christopher Williams

40. Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Councillor Laura Mayes.

41. Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 18" March 2010 were approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

42. Declarations of Interest

E/09/01602/FUL — Councillor Philip Brown declared a personal and prejudicial
interest in the application as he is an employee of Sainsbury and therefore
would not participate in the consideration of the application, withdrawing from
the meeting for the duration of the consideration and determination of the
application.

Councillor Peggy Dow declared that she had publically supported the Tesco
Supporters Group in 2009, however this was before she had known that
another Supermarket was interested in establishing premises in the
Marlborough area. In the interest of making decisions that are open and
transparent, she would speak in her capacity as local member and then
withdraw from the meeting for the duration of the consideration and
determination of the application.

E/10/0183/S73 Councillor Chris Humphries declared a personal and prejudical
interest in the application as he is the applicant and would therefore withdraw
from the meeting for the duration of the consideration and determination of the
application.

Page 1



43.

44,

45.

46.

E/09/0758/FUL — Councillor Richard Gamble declared a personal interest in this
item as Mr Bennett is known to him through the group ‘Business over
Breakfast'..

Chairman's Announcements

There were none.

Public Participation

The Committee noted the rules on public participation and the manner in which
the meeting would proceed.

Planning Appeals

The Committee noted the report. The Chairman remarked on the favourable
results, which compared with the national average for local planning authorities
of the Appeal Performance April 1% 2009 -31% March 2010.

Planning Application - E/09/01602/FUL - Full planning application for:
Development of Class A1 supermarket with associated access
arrangements, servicing, landscaping, parking and upgraded pedestrian
crossing and bus stops At: Marlborough Business Park, MARLBOROUGH,
SN8 4AW

The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the
main issues in respect of the application.

The Committee then received statements from the following members of the
public expressing their views regarding this planning application.

Public Participation:

Mr Bruno Moore spoke in opposition of the application.

Mr David Dudley spoke in opposition of the application.

Ms Melanie Chiswell spoke in support of the application.

Mrs Lisa Farrell spoke in support of the application.

Mr Carter spoke in support of the application.

Mrs Hannaford-Dobson Marlborough Town Councillor spoke in support
of the application.

Mrs Peggy Dow Marlborough Town Councillor and Unitary Member for
Marlborough East, spoke in support of the application.

Ok wON =

~

Following a lengthy debate of the salient points,

Page 2



Resolved:

Planning permission is GRANTED for the following reasons:
The decision to grant planning permission has been taken on the grounds that
the proposed development would not cause any significant harm to interests of
acknowledged importance having regard to the policies of the development
plan, central government planning statements and guidance and other material
considerations.
The proposed development is an out of centre food store in Marlborough which
will offer convenience goods and, to a lesser extent, comparison goods. The
application for the development is accompanied by considerable evidence
which demonstrates that there would be no adverse impact from this on:

(i) town centre vitality and viability, including local consumer choice and

the range and quality of the comparison and convenience offer;

(i) in-centre trade/turnover and on trade in the wider area; and
(i) other locally important impacts.

There are no existing, committed and planned public and private investment

proposals in the centre or centres within the catchment area of the proposal.

There are no allocated sites outside the town centre being developed.

The application site is neither in the town centre nor at the edge of the centre. It

has, however, been robustly demonstrated that there are no sequentially

preferable sites in these locations in any event. The proposal is of an

appropriate scale in relation to the size of the centre and its role in the hierarchy

of centres.

In general terms the proposal:

(i) has been planned over the lifetime of the development to limit carbon

dioxide emissions, and minimise vulnerability and provide resilience
to climate change;

(i) is accessible by a choice of means of transport including walking,
cycling, public transport and the car, and would not aggravate
congestion after public transport and traffic management measures
have been put in place;

(i)  secures a high quality and inclusive design which takes the
opportunities available for improving the character and quality of the
area (including the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty) and the way
it functions;

(iv)  achieves development on a long term vacant site which has failed to
generate interest for other business uses, and provides consumer
choice to the benefit of social inclusion objectives;

(v) does not have a detrimental impact on local employment provision.

Page 3



It is material that there is only one other significant food store in the town, this
restricting consumer choice. It is also material that the ‘claw back’ of leaked
expenditure would benefit the town through linked trips, and reduce journey
times in the interests of sustainability. Notwithstanding the out of centre
location, the site remains reasonably close to the town centre and is accessible
by a variety of means. The application includes proposals to promote more
sustainable transport choices. It also sets out proposed alterations to road
infrastructure so that existing congestion on the local road network is not
aggravated.

Although the site is protected strategic employment land the proposal satisfies
the PPS4 definition of economic development. The new store would employ
around 140 people.

The design of the development is considered acceptable and appropriately
sustainable within its context, with no adverse impacts on the area of
outstanding natural beauty or visual amenity in general. The privacy of nearby
residential properties would not be adversely affected.

Without prejudice to the outcome of either application, comparative analysis of
the proposal with a later competing application for a second food store on
adjoining land has shown that the Tesco proposal has, on balance, fewer
adverse effects and/or disadvantages to the public.

The decision to grant planning permission has been made having regard to
Policies DP1, DP2, DP3, DP6, T1 and C8 of the Wiltshire and Swindon
Structure Plan 2016; Policies PD1, ED7, ED17, AT1, AT9 AT10 and NR7 of the
Kennet Local Plan 2011; and Central Government planning statements and
guidance set out in PPS1, PPS4, PPS7 and PPG13.

Subject to the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years of the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 Notwithstanding the information set out in the application particulars,
no development shall take place until details of the materials to be
used for the external walls and roofs, and the surfacing of the car
park, access roads and pedestrian routes, (including samples) have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

REASON: To secure harmonious architectural treatment.
3 This permission grants a net convenience sales floor area of 1,080 sq

m and a net comparison goods sales area of 122 sq m.
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning

Page 4



(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, (or any Order revoking
and re-enacting that Order), there shall be no provision of retail
floorspace in excess of the net areas defined without the prior
express consent of the local planning authority neither shall there be
any alteration or subdivision of the sales floor, nor provision of
ancillary or subsidiary retail units within that sales floor.

REASON:

To accord with the terms of the application and in particular its
justification for sales areas of these specific sizes, and having regard
to policies set out in PPS4 and the Development Plan which resist
developments which could have a detrimental impact on the vitality
and viabilty of the town centre.

Immediately upon the commencement of trading of the store hereby
permitted, provision shall be made at the entrance to the store for the
advertising of town centre retail and service facilities in accordance
with a scheme which has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority prior to commencement of the internal
fitting out of the building.

REASON:

To support and encourage linked trips between the store and the
town centre in accordance with the qualitative justification forming
part of the application and in the interests of maintaining the vitality
and viability of the town centre.

All soft landscaping comprised in the submitted landscaping scheme
(that is, drawing no. "ASP4: Planting Plan Rev B" dated 03/12/09 and
accompanying the Landscaping Supporting Statement by Aspect
Landscape Planting) shall be carried out in the first planting and
seeding season following the opening of the store or the completion
of the development, whichever is the sooner; any trees or plants
which, within a period of 5 years, die, are removed, or become
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced the next planting
season with others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the local planning authority. All hard landscaping
shall also be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior
to the occupation of any part of the development or in accordance
with a programme to be agreed in writing with the local planning
authority.

REASON:
To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development.

Notwithstanding the information set out in the application particulars,

the acoustic barrier to be provided around the outside of the service
yard shall comprise both the indicated timber acoustic fence and the

Page 5



10

service yard gates. Before development is commenced the detailed
design of the acoustic barrier, including its acoustic properties, shall
be submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing.
The acoustic barrier shall then be erected in accordance with the
approved specification prior to the first opening of the store or the
completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. The
acoustic barrier shall be permanently retained thereafter.

REASON:

To safeguard the residential amenities of future occupiers of the
adjacent site which benefits from a resolution to grant planning
permission for a residential and live/work development.

The loading and unloading of service and delivery vehicles (including
home delivery vehicles) together with their arrival and departure from
the site shall not take place outside the hours of 7.00 am to 11.00 pm
(Monday to Saturday) and 8.00 am to 10.00 pm Sundays. The
service yard gates shall be kept closed at all times other than when
vehicles are entering or leaving the service yard.

REASON: To safeguard the residential amenities of future occupiers
of the adjacent site which benefits from a resolution to grant planning
permission for a residential and live/work development.

The rating level of noise emitted from the site shall not exceed the
existing background noise level, the LA90T, by more than 5dB. The
noise level shall be determined at the nearest noise sensitive
premises. The measurement and assessment of such noise shall be
made in accordance with BS4142 1997.

REASON: To safeguard the residential amenities of future occupiers
of the adjacent site which benefits from a resolution to grant planning
permission for a residential and live/work development.

Details of any floodlighting/external lighting proposed to illuminate the
development (including light spillage diagrams) shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority before the
store is first opened to the public or the development is completed,
whichever is the earliest date. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To safeguard local amenities.
The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until
such time as site drainage plans (foul and surface water drainage)

have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local
planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

Page 6



11

12

13

14

REASON: To demonstrate adequate means of disposal of surface
water and foul water.

Before the development hereby permitted is first brought into use, a
Green Travel Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The Green Travel Plan shall include
details of implementation and monitoring and shall be implemented in
accordance with these agreed details. The results of the
implementation and monitoring shall be made available to the local
planning authority on request, together with any changes to the plan
arising from those results.

REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular traffic
to the development.

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is first opened
to the public the access, turning areas and parking spaces shall be
completed in accordance with the details shown on the approved
plans, and shall thereafter be maintained for these purposes.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until
details of the secure cycle parking facilities have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These
facilities shall be fully implemented and made available for use prior
to the first opening of the store to the public and shall thereafter be
retained for this use at all times.

REASON: To ensure that satisfactory facilities for the parking of
cycles are provided and to encourage travel by means other than the
private car.

Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved
detailed specifications for the 'Sustainable Travel Initiatives' and the
‘Junction 3' 'Junction Improvements' set out in the Transport
Assessment Addendum dated 02/10 (including drawing no. 17518-
01-1-OS-03C) shall be submitted to the local planning for approval in
writing. The Sustainable Travel Initiatives and the Junction 3
Junction Improvements shall then be completed in accordance with
the approved detailed specifications either prior to the first opening of
the store to the public or the completion of the development,
whichever is the sooner.

REASON: To ensure satisfactory pedestrian links to the town centre

and to address congestion issues on the road network in accordance
with the application particulars and in the interests of highway safety.

Page 7



15

16

17

Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved
detailed specifications for the 'Junction 1 ' and 'Junction 2' 'Junction
Improvements' set out in the Transport Assessment Addendum dated
02/10 (including drawing no. 17518-01-1-0S-06B & 17518-01-1-OS-
07A) shall be submitted to the local planning for approval in writing.
The Junction 1 and Junction 2 Junction Improvements shall then be
completed in accordance with the approved detailed specifications
either prior to the first opening of the store to the public or the
completion of the development, whichever is the sooner.

REASON:

To ensure satisfactory pedestrian links to the town centre and to
address congestion issues on the road network in accordance with
the application particulars and in the interests of highway safety.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved
details of the taxi pick up and drop off point outside of the store
(including road markings) and details of the taxi call point within the
store shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval in
writing. The details shall show marked out spaces for two taxis to
pick up and drop off outside the store. The taxi drop off and pick up
point and the taxi call point shall be provided in accordance with the
approved details prior to the first opening of the store to the public or
the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. The taxi
pick up and drop off point and the taxi call point shall be permanently
maintained thereafter.

REASON:
To accord with the terms of the application and to ensure sustainable
transport choices in accordance with PPS4 and PPG13.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved a
detailed specification for the final surfacing of the 3 metre wide
footway along the entire Blenheim Road frontage of the site shall be
submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing.
Additionally, prior to commencement of the development hereby
approved a detailed specification for a 2 metre wide footway along
the entire Woodstock Court frontage of the site shall be submitted to
the local planning authority for approval in writing. Both the final
surfacing of the footway along the entire Blenheim Road frontage and
the new footway along the entire Woodstock Court frontage shall be
provided in accordance with the approved detailed specifications
before either the new store first opens to the public or the
development is completed, whichever is the sooner.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

Page 8



47.

18 This decision relates to documents/plans submitted with the
application, listed below. No variation from the approved documents
should be made without the prior approval of this Council.
Amendments may require the submission of a further application.
Failure to comply with this advice may lead to enforcement action
which may require alterations and/or demolition of any unauthorised
buildings or structures and may also lead to prosecution.

Drawing nos. APOO (13/11/09), APO1A (13/11/09) & 17518-01-1-0S-
05 (12/09) received by the Ipa 07/12/09;

Drawing nos. APO3P (13/11/09), AP04C (13/11/09), APO05B
(13/11/09) & AP06J (31/07/09) received by the Ipa on 24/02/10;

Drawing no. 'ASP4: Planting Plan Rev B' (03/12/09) forming part of
the Landscape Supporting Statement;

Drawing nos. 17518-01-1-TR-01D (12/09), 17518-01-1-OS-03C
(12/09), 17518-01-1-0S-06B (12/09), 17518-01-1-0OS-07A (01/10) &
17518-01-1-OS-08A (01/10) forming part of the Transport
Assessment Addendum received by the Ipa 10/02/10.

Planning Application - E/10/0183/S73 - Full planning application for :
Variation of condition on planning permission K/51693/F to extend the
time limit for implementation of the planning permission At: Butchers
Shop, 6A The Square, ALDBOURNE SN8 2DU

The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the
main issues in respect of the application.

The Committee then received statements from the following members of the
public expressing their views regarding this planning application.

Public Participation:

1. Mr Cowan spoke in opposition of the application
2. Mr Evill spoke in support of the application

Following a debate of the salient points,

Resolved:

Planning permission is GRANTED for the following reasons:

The decision to grant planning permission has been taken on the grounds that

the proposed development would not cause any significant harm to interests of
acknowledged importance and having regard to policies PD1 and ED29 of the

Page 9



48.

Kennet Local Plan 2011 and to central government planning policy contained in
PPS5 'Planning for the Historic Environment'.

Planning Application - E/09/0758/FUL- Full Planning application for :

Erection of a 4 Bed detached house, with attached garage, including all

other associated works. (Amendment to K/57892/F). At Plot 1 Halstead

Farm Kings Road EASTERTON SN10 4PS

The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the
main issues in respect of the application.

The Committee then received statements from the following members of the
public expressing their views regarding this planning application.

Public Participation:

1.

Mr Barrett spoke in opposition of the application

2. Mr Bennett spoke in support of the application

Following a debate of the salient points,

Resolved:

Planning permission is GRANTED for the following reasons:

The decision to grant planning permission has been taken on the grounds that
the proposed development would not cause any significant harm to interests of
acknowledged importance and having regard to national guidance contained
within Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment and
the following policies and proposals in the Kennet Local Plan 2011 namely:
policy PD1.

Subject to the following conditions:

1

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years of the date of this permission.

REASON:

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990, as amended by the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

All soft landscaping comprised in the submitted landscaping details
hereby approved shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding
season following the occupation of the building(s) or the completion
of the development whichever is the sooner. All shrubs, trees and
hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be

Page 10



protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants
which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting
season with others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the local planning authority. All hard landscaping
shall also be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior
to the occupation of any part of the development or in accordance
with a programme to be agreed in writing with the local planning
authority.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaping setting for the
development.

Prior to the first use of the access the driveway shall be surfaced in a
well bound consolidated material (not loose stone or gravel) in
accordance with details which have first been submitted to and
approved in writing by th local planning authority, and shall be
maintained as such thereafter.

REASON:
In the interests of highway safety.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order, 1995 (or any Order revoking
and re-enacting or amending that Order with or without modification),
no additions to, or extensions or enlargements of, the building hereby
approved shall be erected.

REASON:

To enable the local planning authority to retain control over the
enlargement of the building in the interests of the proper planning and
amenity area.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order, 1995 (or any Order revoking
and re-enacting or amending that Order with or without modification),
no windows, doors or other openings, other than those shown on the
approved plans shall be inserted above ground floor level in the south
or east elevations of the building hereby permitted.

REASON:
In the interests of the privacy of the neighbouring properties

Page 11



49.

The en-suite window at first floor level shown on the approved plans
on the east elevation shall be glazed with obscured glass and fitted
with a ventilation stay restricting the opening of the window, in
accordance with details which have been first approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The window shall be maintained in
accordance with the approved details thereafter.

REASON:
In the interests of the privacy of the neighbouring property.

Prior to the installation of the air source heat pump hereby approved
full manufacturer's details and specifications (including noise details)
of the air source heat pump together with appropriate noise mitigation
measures, if required, shall first be submitted to and approved by the
local planning authority in writing. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON:
In the interests of neighbour and visual amenity.

This decision relates to documents/plans submitted with the
application, listed below. No variation from the approved documents
should be made without the prior approval of this Council.
Amendments may require the submission of a further application.
Failure to comply with this advice may lead to enforcement action
which may require alterations and/or demolition of any unauthorised
buildings or structures and may also lead to prosecution.

Plan Ref: HF1-01, 02 and 04 all received on the 16th June 2009,
additional survey drawing dated 15th February 2009 and the
Amended Site Plan - Landscaping and Location Plan received on the
26th March 2010.

Urgent items

There were none.

(Duration of meeting: 6.00 - 8.00 pm)

Page 12



The Officer who has produced these minutes is Anna Thurman, of Democratic &
Members’ Services, direct line (01225) 718379, e-mail
anna.thurman@uwiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda ltem 6a

REPORT TO THE EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE  eport No. 1
Date of Meeting 10" June 2010
Application Number E/10/0107/FUL

Site Address

Bromham House Farm, Devizes Road, Bromham, Wilts SN15 2DX

Proposal Retrospective Change of Use of Land & Buildings for the Parking & Storage
of Vehicles, Plant & Equipment Pending Preparation for Sale or Export;
Improvements to Road Junction

Applicant Mr Jim Butler

Town/Parish Council BROMHAM

Grid Ref

397506 165854

Type of application

Full Planning

Case Officer

Rob Parker

Reason for the application being considered by Committee
This application is before the Committee at the request of the Division Member, Clir

Brown.

1. Purpose of Report
To consider the recommendation that the application be refused.

2. Report Summary
The main issues in this case are the impact upon visual amenity and landscape

character, and the impacts upon highway safety and neighbour amenity.

3. Site Description

This application relates to Bromham House Farm which lies in the countryside on the
eastern outskirts of Bromham. The entrance to Bromham House Farm lies on the
A342 Devizes to Chippenham road, immediately opposite the northern turning into
Highfield.

Page 15



4. Relevant Planning History

E/09/1093/FUL - Change of use of land and buildings to allow the parking and
storage of vehicles, plant and equipment pending preparation for sale or export;
Improvements to road junction. Application withdrawn by applicant on 7" October
2009.

5. The Proposal

The proposal is for a retrospective change of use of land & buildings for the parking &
storage of vehicles, plant & equipment pending preparation for sale or export. As
part of the proposal the junction onto the A342 would be improved (see drawing
below). The changes also include a proposed slip road to serve the dwellings closest
to the A342 junction.

Page 16



A 3412

baat lesst |y d esine bl

Propose] new aues ———

6. Planning Policy
Kennet Local Plan 2011 - policies PD1, NR6 & NR7 are relevant to the consideration
of this planning application. Supplementary Planning Guidance contained in the
Kennet Landscape Conservation Strategy is also a material consideration.
Government guidance contained in PPS4: ‘Planning for Sustainable Economic
Growth’ is relevant.

7. Consultations
Bromham Parish Council — no objections, supports the amended plan to include 4
Roughmoor Cottages in the proposed slip road.

Wiltshire Council Highways — no objections, subject to a condition requiring the
junction improvements and access road alterations to be carried out within 6 months.

Wiltshire Council Landscape Consultant — no objections in principle, subject to:

e Storage areas being confined to areas E and F on the plans;
e The height of vehicles stored on the site being restricted to 4.3 metres; and
e Landscaping detail being supplied as part of the application.

8. Publicity
The application has been advertised by press and site notices. Neighbour
notification has also been carried out.

Representations have been received from the owner/occupiers of 2, 3 & 4
Roughmoor Cottages. These properties front onto the access road leading to
Bromham House Farm and would be directly affected by the proposed junction
improvements. Neither neighbour has any objection to the proposals. They make
the following additional comments:

e The bank between the two roads should be maintained as grass with perhaps
some kerbing to retain the soil and refurbishment to the ruts in the existing

Page 17



road (which will be retained as a cul-de-sac as part of the proposals).

e The proposed new access will greatly improve visibility when exiting onto the
A342, and will allow drivers travelling along the A342 better visibility of
vehicles exiting onto the A342.

¢ The proposal to retain the existing road for residents’ access will also be an
improvement when exiting their properties giving improved visibility
and improving safety for residents.

A further representation of objection has been received from the owner/occupier of
52 Highfield. The respondent considers that the proposal would be detrimental to
highway safety without improvements being made to the junction of the farm access
onto the A342.

9. Planning Considerations

Background

The applicant claims that his farm has diversified into various commercial enterprises
over the last twenty years. The current planning application relates to one of those
enterprises. In essence, the applicant has entered into an arrangement with an
agency which finances the purchase of commercial vehicles, plant and machinery, to
collect, repair and/or recondition such items where the company is unable to meet its
contractual obligations with the finance company. Once the items have been
cleaned and repaired, they are sold to defray the outstanding financial obligations
between the parties to the original agreement.

According to the applicant, until the end of 2007 the number of vehicles and items of
plant being brought onto the farm was not significant and the business operated
alongside the other agricultural and commercial activities run from the site. Since
then the severe economic recession has resulted in a significant increase in the
number of repossessions, and a collapse in the demand for commercial vehicles,
plant and equipment. This has resulted in a marked increase in the number of
vehicles, etc. that are stored or parked in and around the farm buildings. The
applicant therefore decided to construct an additional area of hardstanding for use in
connection with the business. An earth bund has been constructed around the north
and east edges of the hardstanding.

Assessment

Government guidance contained in PPS4 advises local planning authorities to
support farm diversification initiatives which are consistent in scale and
environmental impact with their rural location.

The main impacts of this development are upon visual amenity and landscape
character, highway safety and neighbour amenity.

a) Impact upon visual amenity and landscape character

The vehicles, plant and machinery are stored on a new hardstanding to the north of
the existing farm buildings. The position of the hardstanding means that the
development is hidden in views from the south. The main visual impact is from the
north and there are clear views from the A342 near its junction with the A3102. The
most significant views are from the A342 from the junction with the Calne Road
(B3102) southwards.

Page 18



The nature of the storage, which includes amongst other things brightly coloured lorry
units, articulated trailers and earthmoving plant with jibs, means that it is highly
visible as a discordant element in the rural landscape. In essence, it is what you
would expect on an industrial estate in a built up area, not a farmyard in the
countryside. The existing bunding is inadequate to screen the external storage
effectively and higher bunding would be impractical and appear alien in this location.
The applicant has put in a landscaping scheme and it would be possible to plant the
boundaries with trees and hedging (as proposed in the scheme), but your officers are
concerned that this would be inadequate as the commercial vehicles are bulky and
taller than the normal hedgerows and planting that could be expected in this location.
Any planting would take a considerable length of time to establish and become
effective, plus native species would not provide the necessary screening in the winter
months. |.

The proposed junction improvements would also have a visual impact. However, it is
considered that this is capable of being mitigated by a suitable landscaping scheme
incorporating native trees and hedging.

b) Impact upon highway safety

The application proposes improvements to the junction of the access road with the
A342. These improvements are necessary to improve the junction radii and make it
suitable for the large, often articulated, vehicles accessing the site. It will also have
added benefits for farm traffic and the residents of neighbouring properties. The
Council’s highway engineer is satisfied that the improvements are acceptable from a
highway safety perspective. There are thus no objections on these grounds.

c) Impact upon neighbour amenity

The movement of heavy vehicles and plant in and out of the site has the potential to
cause nuisance for the occupiers of residential properties alongside the access.
However, the number of daily movements is likely to be relatively modest, particularly
in comparison to the existing levels of farm traffic using the access. The realignment
of the junction will move the access road further away from Roughmoor Cottages and
this will reduce any impact upon the amenities of occupiers of these properties. It is
relevant to note that no objections on these grounds have been received from
adjacent properties; three have made representations but none has raised any
objection on amenity grounds.

d) Economic benefits

PPS 4 supports economic development in rural areas, but makes it clear that
planning authorities need to consider whether the benefits outweigh the harm in
terms of the potential impact on the countryside and landscape compared to the local
economic and social needs.

Conclusion

As other matters are not at issue, the assessment of this application focuses on
whether the benefits of the economic diversification outweigh the harm to the
appearance of the countryside and landscape at the site. This is a finely balanced
issue and had the use involved smaller scale vehicles, such as tractors, officers may
have been able to support it. However, the size and nature of the vehicles involved
make the operation one that is more appropriately sited on a properly serviced
industrial estate. The impact of this open storage on the appearance of the
countryside is considered unacceptable and accordingly, refusal is recommended.

RECOMMENDATION

Page 19



Refuse planning permission for the following reason:

The open storage of vehicles, plant and machinery is detrimental to visual amenity
and landscape character due to its location adjacent to open countryside, height and
bright coloration. This is contrary to policies PD1 & NR7 of the Kennet Local Plan
2011, Supplementary Planning Guidance contained in the Kennet Landscape
Conservation Strategy and government policy contained in PPS4: ‘Planning for
Sustainable Economic Growth’.

Appendices: None
Background Documents Used in the The application file and associated
Preparation of this Report: history file.

Page 20



Agenda ltem 6b

REPORT TO THE EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE Report No. 2

Date of Meeting 10™ June 2010

Application Number E/10/0071/FUL

Site Address Sharcott Pennings Farm, Wilcot Road, Pewsey, Wiltshire

Proposal Demolition of existing beef cattle buildings and replacement with new dairy
complex and agricultural tied dwelling.

Applicant The Lady Rothschild (1997) Discretionary Settlement

Town/Parish Council PEWSEY

Grid Ref 415145 160651

Type of application Full Planning

Case Officer Andrew Guest

Reason for the application being considered by Committee
This application is brought before the Committee by the Area Development Manager as it is a
major scheme that has a range of issues that warrant consideration by the Committee.

Purpose of Report
To consider the recommendation that the application be approved subject to the applicant
entering into a ‘Section 106 agreement’.

Report Summary
The main issues in this case are as follows:

. The principle of a new agricultural enterprise, including the need for a new
agricultural worker’s dwelling;

. The impact of the specific proposal on visual amenity, including the Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty;

o The impact of traffic generated by the development on highway safety;

The impact of the development on residential amenity, including from traffic;
. The impact on ecology.

Site Description

The application site forms part of the applicant’s wider estate which extends to some 809 ha of
“in hand” land in the locality and 324 ha of third party land (contract farmed). On the overall
estate the applicant’s farming operation comprises a dairy unit, a beef enterprise, a sheep unit
and an arable enterprise.

The application site itself extends to 5.7 ha, and comprises the farmyard and part of two
adjacent fields at Sharcott Pennings Farm. Sharcott Pennings Farm extends to 61 ha in total.
The farmyard supports a number of mainly contemporary farm buildings (including a disused
dairy) currently used to rear beef cattle, and a single house occupied by a farm worker. The
adjacent fields are used for arable purposes.

Adjacent to the site on its north side is the Wilcot to Pewsey road with countryside beyond. To
the immediate east side is a bridleway with the Angela Yates Memorial playing fields beyond
this. To the south and west is open farmland. The wider area has scattered residential
development (the closest being Pemberton House, approximately 110m to the east). The site
and its surroundings lie within open countryside and an area of outstanding natural beauty.

Page 21



Application Site

Planning History
No relevant planning history.

Proposal

The estate’s dairy unit is currently based at East Stowell and comprises 150 milking cows.
Output from this dairy unit is approximately 1.4 to 1.5 million litres per annum; there is an
available quota of approximately 1.7 million litres.

The applicant proposes to re-locate dairy production from East Stowell to Sharcott Pennings
Farm. The herd would be, at a minimum, doubled to 300 milking cows, with a possible
expansion to 500 cows.

An entirely new dairy unit would be constructed for the enterprise (all existing buildings with the
exception of the house to be demolished). Included within the new farmyard would be an
anaerobic digester, used to produce heat and power for both farm use and commercial sale, and
a new “unit manager’s house” and flat.

The new farmyard would be large and relatively extensive. It would comprise four farm buildings
(two cow barns (approx. 85m by 30m each), a rotary parlour (approx. 70m by 25m), and a
smaller straights store/storage barn. In addition there would be open silage clamps (approx.
100m by 60m) and a dirty water lagoon. The fields surrounding the site are sown with grass and
would be used to graze the cows, as well as early season silage production.

The digester would comprise three main structures — the digestate store, the digester and a
process building. Maximum building heights W|SU|d be %Efor the barns, parlour, digestate store
age



and digester. Hardstandings would be provided within and around the various buildings and
structures.

The unit manager's house would be located to the north side of the new farmyard,
approximately 15m from the Wilcot to Pewsey road. It would be a four bedroom house with a
detached treble garage containing a first floor self-contained flat.

The existing vehicular access to the site from the Wilcot to Pewsey road would be closed and a
new access formed further to the east. .Substantial new landscaping would be provided around
the edges of the site.

In support the applicant makes the following statements:

“The future of milk production at Stowell Farms has been reviewed over the last 18 months.
Whilst the industry has had some difficult times, with poor milk values, and high input costs,
milk values are currently profitable. With significant shrinkage in the industry, and the
increasing consumption of dairy products worldwide, the industry is now more secure for those
businesses producing good output with sensible economies of scale. These factors, plus a
desire from the estate owners (third generation of the family) and staff to maintain a tradition of
milk production on the estate, and the aim to continue to provide employment for the long term
staff, led to the decision to continue producing milk.

The existing dairy unit at East Stowell has been un-improved for some time, and with up-
coming changes in legislation relating to slurry storage, and the demands of the modern dairy
cow, significant investment would be required. Whilst this was at first considered, the
constraints of site topography, and the proximity of a significant watercourse, left the estate
considering other options. A number of sites were considered, before deciding our preferred
option was to relocate the dairy to Sharcott Pennings Farm.

..... [Sharcott Pennings Farm] is currently used to winter house beef cattle and dairy heifers,
as well as storage of silage, straw, fertiliser and machinery. The site itself requires
improvement, as many of the buildings are old and in need of repair/replacement. A number
of the buildings on the farm are not suitable for modern agricultural use, and are redundant.

The buildings left redundant at East Stowell following the dairy herd’s relocation could be
utilised for housing beef cattle and dairy heifers that were previously kept at Sharcott Pennings
Farm”.

Page 23



MATERALE
Al imiar bpanding 20 usEs &0 be trestad Hmiasn, Box profls
wiazl shasts 1o barm snd led wione to b, sipsr Creen,

&
_— A roofe da be Eternd. Farmmesps Frofis 6 Stre canant:
-
e Pl
o b e L
releting bk oy & e
e e
gt e L
o o Py
el v | £ S FE—— — : e = - i
s
e AT
| sararsts pusing

3 CLAMET

LUATMIRER Ry g b
AMEN Dell PLANK
Ehologil B e

e

u ey B e
Ertnta Hitljaiion measeras:
Ap mal ap pponiiia n.ul:_<..,. roporsis pe, srel @round, B deregerd siEe petionl pleniing e —
propreed on bue park of the Biemel Esbabs for poad mas mmempeet srd b G wiGiaks ageingt sy —
presisi vieusl irpart, Thip mark ndudes WRTEHRE COUNCIL

P (iappies up Se sesking besigs miong W1 eek Kanpl ko Lar wewt of dhe se. B2 resuss mvg viniedly 1 |SHAECOTT FENNINGS F."\E.H..
Fram ross upsre. |

L dipords Trosd wEhin Fhg Tand yiong hodgeneas o the madk ko sareen larg diifasse views

from uppar ve of Abirie Houss st Ve ingferd Crossrwss

" Flarti ma adgr, wi L% madgerrw Grans, @lers the paddask boasieey wi0h 18 Ravens 8
Btariett Forirge. W Bbe powth of Fag direyerd

B Flariing & sre mpinasy along #he Sapsleorragh Bosd, briaeen the boorndary wtih 92, 1 Sharcoss
Faaaingr srel the everazed pleokoia Hy peblne. This wll sorcen mep dimbant gimpeee o the now seh
mul alop £y provide p el d He porrigor Pniing Shpropti Drose with $he adpting woadlard S0 the pouih L =
ef the Maadboraagh Memd

| | [MLcor, FEwsEY
i

\==| [LaNdscape Concept
e | Nroogag [ apaio [ peoss

Layout Plan and Landscape Concept

Regarding the anaerobic digester (AD), the applicant states the following:

“AD Plants are designed to harvest biogas from organic materials. The plant consists of
sealed digester tanks, into which cow slurry, waste feed, maize silage, grass silage and other
farm produced manures are pumped. The material is then heated to assist bacterial activity.
These bacteria produce the biogas (60% methane). The biogas is then used to fuel a CHP
unit (combined heat and power). The CHP unit (an engine designed to run on methane)
drives a generator, producing electricity. Some of the electricity is used on the farm; the
remainder is sold to the grid. Heat is produced in the form of hot water which is used to cool
the engine. Some of this hot water is used to heat the digester, some is used for heating

Page 24



requirements on the farm and dwellings, the remainder can be sold to third parties. [A
possible user of the surplus hot water is the nearby school in Pewsey].

..... The plant would consist of a single digester vessel, a storage vessel for the digestate, and
a building housing the dosing equipment, the control room and the CHP unit. The CHP unit
would be inside a sound-proofed container.

The used material from the digester (digestate) would be separated to liquid and solid
fractions. The liquid would be stored on site for use as fertiliser for the grass and nearby
arable crops, the solid fraction would be transported to field stores for application to areas
used for maize production. A connection via a transformer would be required to distribute the

electricity into the grid. ....".

Planning Policy
Wiltshire and Swindon Structure Plan 2016 — Policies DP1, DP14, C1, C8, RE1, W2.

Kennet Local Plan 2011 — Policies PD1 & NR7.
Wiltshire & Swindon Waste Local Plan 2011 — Policies 1, 6, 9, 17 & 18.
PPS1 (and supplement), PPS4, PPS7 & PPS22.

Consultations
Pewsey Parish Council: support the application.

Wilcot & Huish (with Oare) Parish Council (adjoining parish): no objections.

Wiltshire Council Highways Officer: The proposed access to the main complex has been shown
in a satisfactory location where appropriate sightlines can be achieved.

The revised information on vehicle routes, material quantities and vehicle capacities has been
considered and analysed. These indicate that on an annual average basis there will be 24
vehicle trips per day where a trip is a one-way movement. Spread over 12 hours there will be
an average of 2 trips per hour (or one trip every 30 minutes). Spread over a 14 hour day there
would be an average of 1.7 trips per hour. | have also considered likely vehicle movements in
September and October. This analysis gives an expected average during those months of 58
trips per day (5 trips per hour).

The access will be of the correct standard and Wilcot Road past the site is of two vehicle width.
The areas of land indicated for crop growing would be used anyway to grow crops and would
therefore generate similar traffic movements from those areas and along the lanes near to those
areas - whether the application succeeds or not.

I would not wish to justify a refusal of the application on traffic generation grounds given these
points.

The existing bridleway access has sub-standard visibility and | am concerned that access is still
shown from the complex to the bridleway albeit marked on the plan as “staff vehicles only”. For
vehicles to or from the Pewsey direction the bridleway route will seem more direct and therefore
there will be a temptation to use it rather than the access to be provided direct to Wilcot Road. |
consider that for safety reasons the route should be closed within the site, to motor vehicles,
allowing only the existing house traffic to use this route.

The site access is indicated with 6m radii which are slightly too small for larger lorries which will
sometimes need to access the site. 8m radii should be provided.

I have no highway objections subject to planning conditions.

Page 25



Wiltshire Council Landscape Consultant: The amended plans have taken account of the
concerns raised during initial discussions. The repositioning of the manager’s house and the
moving of the buildings from the eastern bridleway boundary are welcomed and will help to
reduce the impacts of the development.

The landscape detail has been amended and further Landscape and Visual information
provided. Although this is not entirely in the form normally required, | feel that, in conjunction
with the amendments to the plans, we now have sufficient information to enable the impacts to
be adequately assessed.

o As regards the site layout, this is now considered to be acceptable.

o Tree protection will need to be amended to take account of the site layout changes. This
is particularly pertinent in the area of the spinney west of the manager’s house.

e The above spinney needs some additional trees to replace those to be removed and to
ensure continuity. These should be native species planted as standards.

o The tree planting in the high screen planting areas are too small and should be planted
as 1.2m — 1.5m whips on a 3 metre grid with shrub species on a 1.5m grid in between.

e The size of the low screen planting should be increased to 60 — 90 transplants. Yew
(Taxus baccata) should be omitted as it is poisonous to stock.

¢ Hedge planting needs to be separated from the low screen planting as it requires a
different specification and closer planting centres.

¢ A fully detailed landscape scheme will be required prior to construction commencing and
taking into account the above comments, and also including tree protection
amendments.

¢ The management and protection of the landscape scheme should be conditioned, and |
would therefore recommend a 5 year management plan of existing and newly planted
vegetation. Protection of the new planting; vermin, stock and weed control; replacement
of dead or damaged stock; hedge and tree management (existing and proposed), should
be included in the plan. The plan should take the form of a seasonal breakdown of works
covering the 5 years.

Wiltshire Council Agricultural Consultant: Regarding the farm buildings ... the unit is sized for
500 cows. Clearly, if the initial stock level is 300 cows then the unit will be some 60% oversized.
If the overall commitment is to provide a five hundred cow unit, then it would be prudent to build
a 500 cow unit in the first place; however, the unit will remain significantly oversized until the
dairy herd is expanded to 500 head.

Regarding the unit manager’s house ... the applicant owns the dwelling that adjoins the farm
buildings at the application site. The estate has a number of other dwellings in its ownership;
however, it is understood that all the dwellings are held in a separate way to the farm and thus
any use of those dwellings for the farm would require payment of a market rent.

It is understood that some eight units of full time labour are retained to manage the overall farm
business. It is proposed to recruit two additional full time units of labour for the expansion of the
dairy unit.

The planning application seeks consent for the construction of a new permanent dwelling,
including annex accommodation for a second worker in the new house. Paragraph 3(i) of PPS7
makes it clear that it is the “existing” functional need that is relevant to the functional test. At
present the beef cattle at Sharcott Pennings Farm do not in my opinion generate a requirement
for an essential presence at most times. In any event, there is an existing dwelling at the
application site, which is occupied by a member of the applicant’s staff.

The planning application is focused on the introduction of a very substantial expansion of an
existing enterprise. The situation is catered for at paragraph 12 of Annex A to PPS7. At
paragraph 12 of Annex A it is recognised that there are circumstances where new agricultural
units are established and existing units are expanded. At the paragraph it is specifically stated:

Page 26



“If a new dwelling is essential to support a new farming activity, whether on a newly-created
agricultural unit or an established one, it should normally, for the first three years, be provided
by a caravan, a wooden structure which can be easily dismantled, or other temporary
accommodation”.

It is my opinion that the circumstances of the application fall squarely within paragraph 12 of
Annex A and there is not an existing functional need for the proposed permanent dwelling.

[In terms of the financial test] ... under paragraph 3 of Annex A of PPS7:

“the unit and the agricultural activity concerned have been established for at least three years,
have been profitable for at least one of them, are currently financially sound, and have a clear
prospect of remaining so”.

The agricultural activity concerned is the proposed dairy between 300 and 500 dairy cows. By
the nature of the application, the agricultural activity has yet to be established. There is thus no
financial information regarding the profitability of the enterprise (as it is a proposal).

As indicated above, the proposal would sit within paragraph 12 of Annex A. Paragraph 12
requires that there is “clear evidence” that the proposed business has been planned on a sound
financial basis.

| understand that the applicant is to fund the proposed development from retained funds. The
cost of the development has been taken into account against the income that is likely to be
generated and the applicant considers that an acceptable level of return on the capital has been
demonstrated.

Wiltshire Council Environmental Health Officer: no objection on noise or smell grounds. It
should be expected that there will be a change in noise and odour in the local area but this is
unlikely to be any more significant than a similar agricultural development in a rural location and
not at a level that would cause a statutory nuisance at neighbouring residential properties. In
any event, any complaints of noise or odour nuisance would be investigated by the EHO’s under
the Environmental Protection Act 1990.

County Archaeologist: no requirements.

Wiltshire Council Drainage Engineer: no requirements.

Environment Agency: The flood risk assessment has looked at rainfall runoff rates and volumes
as required by PPS25 and has also suggested a number of SUDs measures to be used in the
detailed design. For example, it is proposed to install a soakaway to address surface water
management for the new farmhouse area. This is considered acceptable in principle, subject to
detailed design.

Further details required of attenuation pond and outflow rates, and management plan for the
dirty water laggon.

Wessex Water: The developer has indicated that the disposal of foul drainage will be to a
‘packaged treatment plant. The developer has proposed to dispose of surface water to
‘soakaways’.

There is a water main in the vicinity of the proposal. It will be necessary for the developer to
agree a point of connection on to the system for the satisfactory supply of water for the proposal.
This can be agreed at the detail design stage.

British Waterways: BW was not consulted on this application by WC as the site falls outside of
the 150m planning buffer. BW was however contacted by a neighbour concerned regarding the
traffic implications for our various road bridges which cross the Kennet & Avon Canal in the

Page 27




area. BW has discussed the proposal with the applicant and has been informed that the
proposal should only result in a small number of additional vehicle movements. BW is also
informed that the weight of a full milk tanker is still below the 40 tonne weight limit set on all of
the bridges in the area. Therefore, unless the volume and type of traffic likely to be generated
significantly changes, BW has no comments to make on the application.

Wiltshire Fire & Waste: recommends informatives.

CPRE: Expresses concern about aspects of the application as follows:

The size of the dairy unit to be built - the plan says that the dairy unit, currently at East
Stowell, is to be doubled to 300 cows and moved to the Pennings Farm site but the
planning application is for a unit with capacity for 500 cows. As the agricultural report
states this is 40% larger that the proposed needs. This appears to be over-development
of the site;

The implied traffic movements — from the application it appears that it will be necessary
for there to be up to 4,000 additional traffic movement in and out of the site. These are
narrow and twisting lanes and there is a history of accidents involving farm vehicles;

The case for additional residential buildings does not seem to be made as there is one
house on the site already and others available on the rest of the estate. The agricultural
report does not see a functional need;

The dirty water lagoon is likely to be a considerable nuisance to local residents and the
nearby playing fields;

The lack of a flood assessment — the run off from the hardstanding to be created would
affect the surrounding area.

Publicity
The application has been publicised by site notice, press advert and neighbour notification.

The application has generated objections from 11 local residents summarised as follows:

Over-development of the site. A single large dairy unit and a digester would not be
sustainable on this site. Although packaged as agriculture, scale and intensity of
development is more like a factory;

Location unsuitable for significant agricultural development as will cause considerable
nuisance to neighbours from increased traffic on substandard road network, including
through Wilcot village and Pewsey. Damage to verges from large agricultural machinery.
Damage to canal bridges;

Sharcott Pennings Farm insufficient in size to provide all food and waste disposal needs
for the enterprise meaning that more traffic would be generated to supply these;

Waste from site will cause pollution and soil structure problems. Slurry can be disposed
of direct to land without the need for biodigestion;

Inappropriate scale of development in the AONB. Probable shift working would lead to
light pollution at night;

Nuisance likely from waste smells, noise and flies;

Better sites exist on the estate which would not cause the problems referred to above;
Although biodigester should be encouraged to produce alternative forms of power, there
is little benefit to local people as electricity is sold to the national grid and no business
plan has been drawn-up to supply surplus hot water to the school. Growing just maize
and silage locally to supply the biodigester would lead to monoculture which is contrary
to the Wiltshire Biodiversity Action Plan. There is a world shortage of food, so growing
crops for biodigestion only is unsustainable;

Proposed permanent dwelling does not accord with PPS7 which requires temporary
dwelling with new enterprises;

Contrary to Wiltshire Waste Plan policies which seek good access to sites for waste
management;

No indication of water usage;

Environmental impact assessment is required,;

Page 28



e Animal welfare issues raised.

The application has generated one letter of support summarised as follows:
e The site is currently unsustainable, and so the need for a modern large scale milk
producing facility in this age is understandable;
o The enterprise should bring additional employment;
e Landscaping will be required.

Planning Considerations

The Principle of the Proposal

As is evident, there are essentially three parts to this proposed development — firstly the new
dairy unit; secondly, the anaerobic digester; and thirdly, the associated residential

accommodation.

Regarding the dairy unit, the site lies within the countryside where agriculture is the predominant
land use. By definition, agriculture is an appropriate use of land within the countryside, and so
as a matter of principle an agricultural dairy unit is acceptable.

11l SO S { R " [T F s | 5 2481 o
e G| ..._l - —— -
ey S, N R TEN S | h R e
503 |l I ! O :_l:: | I =1 \T_ T ‘[
— S B — [ |.— 1 r? _.: | I_| .__I__! _ |
| I 3 |, e o % - s S -
| gene =1 — 1 | 1 — — |
N oo o o | e T e e N =
' | — — | 1 1 —I L
T Tt ey T —A— i I . i ! 1
R i Il = = T I 7 —1 — 1 | =K 1  Charm |
v, B 1 A ey | = [ ¥ — { - e ] -
- iR A—] | [ -
I i | = u!
i = hil ! —1
it | | —
ol E SN In ! [
_ L=d _i = E = |
T — =
e, || el - - — |
s, ; 'l P e = T |
ot T | p
N\ | . il 555 . |
Pt | !
| ratary milking pariour Ll —1
-| |t 48 paint | [ T T AT s, 1
I group 4 group 1 group 2 group 3
P siraw paded - | — . t 1
| s r
I V\e!\ ; et = / I Tied
. P, e A | bl v futidin el s
[ ot . e | 1 = - 1
i 1 | | PO e | | i 1
- g | i = ,
- ]| . —T| - = — |
| S— S | = |
f {| I | B A o I e s SO ! = '
| =T B E HEEREp
| T N | A EH ek i o s
| | t F | I [
i | e ] | ' .-/: 1 1 |
| | v == | |
'H '3 1 | 4 |
[l | I'/,/ / A - — 1 = |
i | RV = B
Ak 1 4 | — - -
' T f AT 4 e R 5 e S s
| (| Py [ 1=
| [ | — = = | == — |
| - o | | t |
WARNRYA N N A e e e e e .
N Ay -.\. r {1 F X K \‘ F
‘_("; h{-‘?hl § lDf'I-'H\‘/ -.r:'.: \-r_r \{-" .-.-_}V __\;..-'

Dairy Unit — Floor Plans

Page 29



Regarding the scale of the proposed dairy unit, it is acknowledged that it is a major development
covering a significant area of land which extends beyond that of the existing farmyard at the site.
PPS7 advises that major development should not take place in these designated areas, except
in exceptional circumstances. The PPS advises that consideration of such applications should
include an assessment of:

(i) the need for the development, including in terms of any national considerations, and
the impact of permitting it, or refusing it, upon the local economy;

(i) the cost of, and scope for, developing elsewhere outside of the designated area, or
meeting the need for it in some other way; and

(iii) any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and recreational
opportunities, and the extent to which it could be moderated.

In relation to point (i), it is reasonable in this case to conclude that there is a need for the
development. As the applicant states in his supporting documents, there has been a tradition of
milk production on the estate, and the intention is to continue this although with more
competitive economies of scale (this requiring a larger scale and more intensive development).
The existing dairy unit provides some employment albeit limited, and the proposed enterprise
would sustain and add to this which is important for the local economy.

The Council’'s Agricultural Consultant has questioned the need for buildings to contain 500 head
of cattle when it is intended to initially only have 300. In response, it is the applicant’s longer
term plan to increase to 500, hence the design of the development to accommodate this number
now. Notwithstanding the lack of immediate need, there is logic in the applicant’s approach, it
allowing comprehensive design and build at this stage without the need for later less well-
planned ‘add-ons’. For this reason the 500 head design is considered acceptable. The
Agricultural Consultant has confirmed that the buildings are designed for purpose.

In terms of point (ii), the estate’s farms within the locality all fall within the area of outstanding
natural beauty, and so there would be no real benefit to the designation if an alternative site was
developed in the same way. In impact terms (point (iii)), the Council’s Landscape Consultant is
satisfied that the development can be accommodated without harm to the quality of the
landscape around the site in any event. It follows, therefore, that as there are no better
alternative sites for the development and because the impact of the actual scheme is
satisfactory (see more below), there are exceptional circumstances in this case to allow the
dairy unit at the site in accordance with PPS7.

Regarding the anaerobic digestion plant, this is proposed partly as a means to store and utilise
the slurry produced by the dairy unit, and partly as a means to produce heat and power for the
farm. This explains its proposed incorporation within the overall scheme and its location close to
the dairy unit. The ‘connection’ with the dairy unit justifies the plant as a matter of principle in
this countryside location, but that said, as the plant cannot function without other inputs (such as
other grown feedstock) its detailed impacts go beyond that of the immediate farm. These details
impacts (and, in particular, traffic generation) are considered further below.

Regarding the proposed dwelling and flat, in principle agricultural worker's dwellings can be
acceptable in the countryside if justified under the ‘tests’ set out in PPS7. Again, this is
considered in greater detail below.

Visual Amenity and the AONB

As set out above, as a matter of principle this major development is considered to be acceptable
within the AONB. In terms of its detailed visual impact, the proposal incorporates a number of
large buildings and structures, and these would be visible in both local and distant views.
However, to ensure the impact is minimised the application includes broad landscaping
proposals which include large areas of both low and high screen planting. This is considered
appropriate mitigation by the Council’s Landscape Consultant subject to further details being
provided by condition.

Page 30



Unlike the existing farmyard at the site, the actual siting of the proposed buildings is away from
the boundaries (with the Wilcot to Pewsey road in particular), and this is seen as a ‘planning
gain’ enabling new landscaping to be carried out in place of unsightly buildings and structures.
The existing vehicular access to the site would be closed and a new access created further to
the east cutting through the new landscaped area. This is also considered to be a visual
improvement as well as an improvement to highway safety. Although a substantial
development, the proposal ‘fits’ satisfactorily on the site and so is not considered to be an over-
development in this case.

The Anaerobic Digestion (AD) Plant, and traffic, noise and smells

As already explained, the AD Plant would make use of the waste material produced by the dairy
unit, and farm grown feedstock, to produce heat and power for both farm use and commercial
sale, It is a form of renewable energy which in broad terms ‘fits’ with Central Government’s
sustainable development strategy as set out in PPS22 (‘Renewable Energy’).

smcrele maran

[ —vun i
| .
| ]
e S | e — +
I:I//. | _\-\"h\ | e
[ 4 P BE—=
[ i [l =——, ﬁ'
= \ , 1
== oo [ |
-'-::'___.-" '\-_\._:_\Qbﬁ \\\_\_\___ =__j il- process I.-JEN] i__: %
o =4 | -
il ‘_:_f- x‘{\ J - _.';" =
. e £ |
7 N | T
llllr_,- \‘-\\'_::\ | | o it =
4 | | ]
W |- I !
(i) " . —
| i
\||I|'I I'Ill L | o ;’.ﬂ frangiomar
s'_-l:-!"' || digeriaty #on ||| 1 woant
i
. M ] ] —
L. ||i 1338 da I 1= ) L P
- i !
Akl | I
| ! e =
W j{p o S .
W - =
Wy ) o
iy, J;}":’j? S RS
4, il A
W, I Al_-.,j_ )
PRt Ll
N oy )
S o o |
= e |'|' il
- ""‘--'.-_;-______._ e h digesfer §|
" ) il 261 s i
e 1l ! [
W i [
: b .'/ I
1 T Y i N
. p: i
) g i
{f Ni\ ;// y
| |I l_I - i, ~ — __.-" i
I T - -
I - ps
1 .I | e
Fa {ee e v | .
' -
—— .
R
1
.I
e

{ W1

1

il
i
Ea
T

1
=

l | digeshar

Page 31



According to PPS22 renewable energy developments should be capable of being
accommodated throughout England in locations where the technology is viable and
environmental, economic, and social impacts can be addressed satisfactorily. In particular, the
PPS states that the wider environmental and economic benefits of all proposals for renewable
energy projects, whatever their scale, are material considerations that should be given
considerable weight in determining whether proposals should be granted planning permission.
However, the PPS also states that in processing applications for anaerobic digestion, local
planning authorities should consider carefully potential impacts of odour; and for biomass
projects, local planning authorities should make sure that the effects of increases in traffic are
minimised by ensuring that the plant is located in as close a proximity as possible to the source
of fuel that has been identified.

Regarding the Wiltshire and Swindon Waste Local Plan, this states that proposals for new waste
management facilities will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that there will be no
significant adverse impact on the environment, human health or amenity. The Plan further
states that in achieving sustainable waste management and the best practicable environmental
option, planning applications for waste management proposals must demonstrate that they have
had regard to the need to, in particular, maximise opportunities for waste elimination, reduction,
re-use, recycling/composting and energy recovery in that order of priority; minimise the distance
waste has to be transported; and protect and where required enhance environmental, economic,
social and community assets. Policy 17 of the Plan specifically refers to ‘Waste to Energy
Recovery Facilities”, accepting them in existing industrial areas, on previously developed land,
in association with other waste management development or at existing landfill sites subject to
conditions, and “on their own merits” in other locations.

The principle of the AD plant being located adjacent to the dairy unit has already been accepted.
In accordance with PPS22, there is logic in locating the plant next to the dairy unit which is the
source of one of its main ‘ingredients’ (that is, slurry). Other ingredients would, however, have
to be transported to the plant. The proposed plant is “small scale” for the purposes of the Waste
Local Plan. In response to objections to additional traffic on the surrounding road network
(serving both the AD plant and the dairy unit) and having regard to the policy advice the
applicant has provided a further supporting statement and a Transport Statement. The
supporting statement says the following:

“There are multiple routes planned for the delivery of maize silage to the site. ... The routes
proposed vary depending on the crop rotation [on the estate as a whole]. At this stage there
are 3 main routes ...

The proposed feedstock tonnages for the AD plant are as follows:

(a) 6500-7000 tonnes of maize silage, produced within the estate.
(b) 8000 tonnes of cow slurry, produced on site.

(c) 0-1000 tonnes of wholecrop silage, produced within the estate.
(d) 0-400 tonnes of waste feed (waste cow rations).

The proposed feed tonnages for the dairy herd are as follows:

(a) 4000 tonnes of maize silage, produced within the estate.

(b) 3000 tonnes of grass silage, 1800 tonnes on site & 1200 tonnes in nearby Wilcot.

(c) 400 tonnes of wheat, 100t delivered from nearby fields at harvest, remainder hauled from
West Stowell as required.

(d) 1000 tonnes of straights, delivered by articulated lorries (approx. 33 per year).

(e) 25 tonnes of minerals, delivered by small lorries, 5t at a time with other
feedstuffs/sundries.

(f) 75 tonnes of other feedstuffs delivered as the minerals.

Digestate tonnage is estimated at 14800 tonnes. Of this 2800 tonnes will be solid material,
removed from site by tractor and trailers at regular intervals throughout the year. The
remaining liquid fraction will be stored on site until suitable application dates and conditions.

Page 32



Some of this tonnage (1500t) will be pumped out on to fields adjoining the site, the remainder
removed by tanker equipment for field application.

The maijority of the cows will lie on manufactured mattresses, with a small amount of finely
chopped straw used as an absorbent material on the beds. Straw usage is expected to be
around 250 tonnes. Some straw will be delivered at harvest from close by fields. The
remaining requirement will be delivered as required by tractor and trailer, from other storage
sites within the estate.

Silage trailers carry approximately 12 tonnes. Wheat trailers carry approximately 14 tonnes
and straw trailers carry approximately 12 tonnes. The solid digestate will be approximately 10
to 12 tonnes per trailer. The liquid digestate will be removed by a contractor with specialist
equipment. ...

The milk will be collected daily, approximately 15t/day. The tanker used for this is already
using this route, collecting from both ourselves at East Stowell, and our neighbours at Wilcot.

It is very difficult to predict the exact movements of an average day in September [the busiest
time from traffic movements on the estate as a whole]. The following could be viewed as a
worst case scenario (108 movements) as it not only involves the maize haulage but also the
extra staff associated with the maize harvest:

(a) 1 milk tanker visit.

(b) 16 staff and manager movements.
(c) 60 maize silage deliveries.

(d) 1 solid digestate trailer load.

(e) 20 liquid digestate tanker loads.
(f) 10 sundry visits/movements.

The maize harvest would take between 8 and 10 days to complete, most likely in two separate

operations, one late Sept/early Oct, one late Oct/early Nov. ....".

Analysis of this data by the Council’'s Highways Officer reveals that on an annual average basis
there would be 24 vehicle trips per day arising from the proposal where a trip is a one way
movement. Spread over 12 hours this amounts to 2 trips per hour, or over 14 hours (the
‘working day’ on the estate), 1.7 trips per hour. At the busiest times in September and October
this figures would increase to 58 trips per day, or 5 trips per hour. Although all of this traffic
would initially use the single road serving the site, it would ultimately branch-off in different
directions around the estate (the “three routes” referred to by the applicant).

The Transport Assessment accompanying the application also considers movements from the
existing beef enterprise at the site, estimating this to be approximately 15 movements per day
(based on 150 head of cattle). This figure would increase to approximately 18 vehicles per day
if the number of cattle was increased to fill the full capacity of the farm (that is 250 head of
cattle). This potential increase would not require planning permission.

Based on this data and analysis the County Highways Officer raises no objection to the
development on highway safety grounds. It is further considered that at these relatively low
levels (even during the busy September and October periods), traffic generation from the
development would not cause such nuisance or inconvenience to distant neighbours in
surrounding lanes and villages to warrant an objection for amenity reasons.

The sale of electricity from the AD plant to the grid and the use of surplus hot water by nearby
properties such as the school would be a commendable and sustainable by-product of the
development. The logistics of this is, however, a private business matter for the applicant and
the parties concerned to resolve, and is not a planning issue.

Regarding noise, odours and other potential nuisances raised as issues by third parties, these
have been considered by the Council’s Environmental Health Officer and no objections raised.

Page 33



The control of odours and flies is, in the first instance, down to good farm management. The
EHO does, however, have powers under other legislation to deal with statutory nuisances
should they arise. The Waste Local Plan supports the principle of spreading on to land
untreated liquids, sludge discards, etc. where this would achieve agricultural improvements.

The agricultural worker’s dwelling and flat

The application includes a proposal for a new permanent agricultural worker’s dwelling and flat.
The reason given for the dwelling is that without it the whole of the proposed enterprise
becomes unviable because the estate cannot invest substantial sums without this necessary on-
site accommodation to attract and retain a suitable senior employee.

pairmd me

south east elevation ™

Farm House (garage re-orientated in amended layout)

The response from the Council’s Agricultural Consultant is set out in the ‘Consultations’ section
of this report. To summarise, the consultant considers that there is no justification for the
dwelling and flat because there is no functional need for a worker to be present at most times to
oversee the existing beef cattle enterprise, and it is against the existing enterprise that the need
should be assessed in accordance with PPS7.

There is an existing farmhouse at the site (Sharcott Pennings Farm farmhouse) occupied by an
estate worker. The applicant considers this relatively small house to be unsuited to the needs of
the anticipated new dairy manager. The farmhouse is, in any event, already occupied by an
estate worker.

The Agricultural Consultant has applied the tests set out in PPS7. However, in this case there
are a number of material considerations which also need to be taken into account in addition to
the PPS. Firstly, although a new dairy enterprise is proposed at Sharcott Pennings Farm, the
overall estate does already have an established dairy, and it is this established enterprise which
is to be effectively transferred to the site. The existing dairy is viable but outdated, whereas the
proposed dairy would be state of the art. In view of these circumstances the new development
is not necessarily considered to be an entirely new enterprise.

Secondly, the applicant intends to employ two new full-time members of staff to operate the new
dairy (this in addition to the eight staff employed on the estate). One of the new employees
would be a manager for the dairy, and suitable accommodation is, therefore, required to reflect
his/her position and family requirements. The existing house at the site would not fulfil this
requirement, and is in any event already occupied by a long term employee who the applicant is
reluctant to displace. Although there are other houses on the wider estate, all are understood to
be held in a separate way to the farms and thus their use would require the payment of a market
rent.

Thirdly, the proposal shows a clear intention by the applicant to invest in the long term
agricultural future of the farm. The applicant is intending to fund the proposed development
from retained funds, and he considers that an acceptable level of return on the capital will be
achieved.

Page 34



Finally, the site for the proposed house is acceptable in terms of other general planning
considerations such as amenity, visual impact and design. The siting is close to the farm
buildings and the entrance to the site to provide surveillance and security which, although not
overriding considerations, are material.

On balance, the proposal for the house is, therefore, considered acceptable in this particular
case. The level of investment in the site, the employment it will provide, the fact that this is part
of an established and viable agricultural estate with an existing dairy enterprise, and the
acceptability of the scheme in all other respects means that the dwelling can be justified under
these very special circumstances. To ensure that the investment in the house follows the
investment in the dairy complex, conditions are recommended that would prevent the house
from being completed and occupied before the main complex of buildings are erected. The flat,
which is just incidental accommodation to the house above its garage is also considered
acceptable, its likely use to be for student or trainee agricultural workers undertaking work
experience. Regarding the existing farmhouse, as this is occupied by an estate worker who the
applicant does not wish to displace, and because the house will ultimately be ‘linked’ with the
new development by virtue of its occupation and physical relationship, a condition is considered
to be reasonable to tie the occupation to an agricultural (or forestry) worker in the same way as
the proposed house and flat.

Flood Risk Assessment

The application is accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment which proposes some soakaways
and some SUDs measures to manage storm water. The broad approaches are acceptable to
the Environment Agency and the Council’s Drainage Engineer subject to extra detail being
provided which can be conditioned. This includes the detailed design of a proposed attenuation
pond to allow controlled final outflow. The EA also requires further details of the management
plans for the dirty water lagoon — again, this can be dealt with by way of a planning condition.

Ecological Issues

The application is accompanied by a habitat survey which makes various recommendations to
safeguard potential wildlife interests at the site. A condition is recommended requiring the
development to be carried out in accordance with the recommendations.

Conclusion

This proposal is for a substantial new development to provide a state of the art dairy unit on this
well-established agricultural estate. The existing farmyard at the site is somewhat tired with a
number of outdated and redundant buildings. The proposed development would bring the farm
into the twenty-first century with designed for purpose agricultural buildings. The principle of
agricultural development in this context is accepted.

Despite its large size and ‘major’ categorisation, the proposed development would ‘fit’ on the site
without harm to the landscape quality of the area of outstanding natural beauty. Landscape
concept drawings indicate substantial new planting to soften the impact of the new buildings and
structures in both local and distant views. Removal of the existing road side farm buildings
would improve visual amenity in this part of the site. The impact on the area of outstanding
natural beauty would, therefore, be neutral.

The proposal includes a small scale anaerobic digestion plant to produce heat and ultimately
electricity from cow slurry and other organic ingredients produced mainly on the estate. This is
a form of renewable energy, the provision of which is positively encouraged by planning policy
and guidance. The applicant has demonstrated that the impact of traffic to service the plant
(and to service the dairy unit as well) is insignificant in both amenity and highway safety terms.

The Council’s Environmental Health Officer is satisfied that a well-managed farm in this location
should not cause nuisance to neighbours by reason of noise, odours or flies. Separate controls
over these matters are available under other legislation in any event.

The proposal includes a permanent farm worker's dwelling and flat. Although there is no
justification for these based on the existing beef cattle enterprise, it is considered that there are

Page 35



exceptional circumstances to allow them for the proposed dairy enterprise having regard to the
established nature of the estate, the level of investment in the proposal and its expected long
term viability, the need for a senior manager for the enterprise, and the acceptability of the
design in all other respects.

Planning approval is, therefore, recommended subject to the applicant entering into a Section
106 agreement with the Council to ‘tie’ the ownership of the new house and flat to the land
comprising Sharcott Pennings Farm.

RECOMMENDATION

Subject to the applicant entering into a ‘Section 106 agreement’ to tie the new farmhouse, flat
and existing Sharcott Pennings Farm farmhouse to the land comprising Sharcott Pennings
Farm, approve subject to the conditions.

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 No development shall commence until a phasing programme for the development has
been submitted to the local planning authority and approved in writing. The phasing
programme shall set out the order in which each element of the development shall be
carried out. It shall specify that the "rotary parlour" building, the "500 cow dairy
complex buildings", the "straights store" & "storage barn", and the "open silage clamps"
shall be completed prior to completion and occupation of the dwelling and flat.

REASON: To ensure the proper planning of the development in accordance with the
agreed scheme, and to ensure that the dwelling and flat are not completed and
occupied before the farm complex itself is completed having regard to the justification
for the dwelling in the first place which is based on the functional need arising from the
farm complex.

3 No development shall commence on site until details and samples of the materials to
be used for the external walls and roofs of both the farm buildings and the house and
garage have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the
area.

4 No development shall commence on site until a management plan for the operation of
the dirty water lagoon has been submitted to the local planning authority and approved
in writing.  The plan shall address the management of this facility having regard to the
flood risk assessment and to ensure that flood risk and any consequent pollution risk is
satisfactorily dealt with. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved management plan.

REASON: To prevent pollution of the water environment.

5 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge of surface
water from the site incorporating sustainable drainage details (including the
design/capacity of any storage tanks and attenuation ponds, and including
sizing/outflow calculations), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall not be brought into use until the surface
water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained.

Page 36



No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft landscaping
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the
details of which shall include:

(a) indications of all existing trees and hedgerows on the land;

(b) details of any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the
course of development;

(c) all species, planting sizes and planting densities, spread of all trees and hedgerows
within or overhanging the site, in relation to the proposed buildings, roads, and other
works;

(d) finished levels and contours;

(e) means of enclosure;

(f) car park layouts;

(g) other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;

(h) hard surfacing materials;

(i) minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, refuse and other
storage units, signs, lighting etc);

(j) proposed and existing functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power, communications, cables, pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc);
(k) retained historic landscape features and proposed restoration, where relevant.

[

REASON:

To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the protection of
existing important landscape features.

All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried
out in the first planting and seeding season following the first occupation of the
building(s) or the completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs,
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected
from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five
years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced
in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the local planning authority. All hard landscaping shall also be
carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part
of the development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON:
To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the protection of
existing important landscape features.

(a) No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any
retained tree be topped or lopped other than in accordance with the approved plans
and particulars, without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. Any
topping or lopping approved shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard
3998 (Tree Work).

(b) If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, another tree
shall be planted at the same place and that tree shall be of such size and species and
shall be planted at such time, as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

(c) No equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought on to the site for the
purpose of the development, until a scheme showing the exact position of protective
fencing to enclose all retained trees beyond the outer edge of the overhang of their
branches in accordance with British Standard 5837 (2005): Trees in Relation to
Construction, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning

Page 37



10

11

12

Authority, and; the protective fencing has been erected in accordance with the
approved details. This fencing shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and
surplus materials have been removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed
in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those
areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the prior written
consent of the Local Planning Authority.

In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree which is to be retained in
accordance with the approved plans and particulars; and paragraphs (a) and (b) above
shall have effect until the expiration of five years from the first occupation or the
completion of the development, whichever is the later.

REASON:
To enable the Local Planning Authority to ensure the retention of trees on the site in
the interests of visual amenity.

Prior to commencement of any works relating to the construction of any of the new
buildings or structures hereby approved, the existing farm buildings at the site shown to
be demolished shall be demolished and the resulting debris cleared from the site (or
stockpiled on the site for use in the construction of the new development, if
appropriate).

REASON:
To ensure the proper planning of the site in accordance with the agreed scheme and to
safeguard the visual amenities of the locality.

The occupation of the dwelling and flat forming part of the development shall be limited
to a person solely or mainly working, or last working, in the locality in agriculture or in
forestry, or a widow or widower of such a person, and to any resident dependants.
The occupation of the flat shall remain at all times incidental to the dwelling.

REASON:

The site is in an area where residential development for purposes other than the
essential needs of agriculture or forestry is not normally permitted and this permission
is only granted on the basis of an essential need for a new dwelling/residential
accommodation in this location having been demonstrated.

The occupation of the existing dwelling known as Sharcott Pennings Farm shall be
limited to a person solely or mainly working, or last working, in the locality in agriculture
or in forestry, or a widow or widower of such a person, and to any resident dependants.

REASON:

Sharcott Pennings Farmhouse is located immediately adjacent to the approved
farmyard. Its proximity and link to the farmyard means that it would be unsuited to
occupation by any persons other than an agricultural worker connected with the
farmyard and wider estate, or working in agriculture or forestry in general. Its
occupation by an agricultural worker also forms part of the justification for the new
agricultural worker's dwelling and flat forming part of the development.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the requirements of
the habitat survey by Lindsay Carrington Ecological Services Ltd dated October 2009,
this including the submission to the local planning authority for approval in writing prior
to commencement of development a detailed mitigation scheme for bats, and repeat
surveys for owls and reptiles immediately before and during demolition works with
mitigation strategies as necessary.

REASON:
To safeguard protected wildlife species.

Page 38



13

14

15

16

17

18

19

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use or occupied until
the new access, the turning areas and the parking spaces have been completed in
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. Notwithstanding the details
shown on the approved plans, the new access shall be provided with bell mouth radii of
8m either side, and not 6m as specified. The areas shall be maintained for those
purposes at all times thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

The new access shall be provided with visibility splays between the edge of the
carriageway and a line extending from a point 2.4 metres back from the edge of the
carriageway, measured along the centre line of the access, to the points on the edge of
the carriageway 90 metres to the south-east and 120 metres to the north-west from the
centre of the access in accordance with the approved plans. Such splays shall
thereafter be permanently maintained free from obstruction to vision above a height of
1m above the level of the adjacent carriageway.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

Any gates across the new access shall be set back 8.0 metres from the edge of the
carriageway, such gates to open inwards only.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use or occupied until at
least the first 8 metres of the new access, measured from the edge of the carriageway,
has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access shall be
maintained as such thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

Prior to the first use of the new access provision shall be made for the disposal of
surface water in accordance with details that have been first submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The method of surface water
disposal shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that surface water is not discharged onto the highway, in the
interests of highway safety.

Within 3 months of the first use of the new access by vehicular traffic (other than
construction traffic) the existing access to the farmyard to the north-west of the new
access shall be stopped-up and the grass verge re-instated at a height and gradient to
match that of the established verges either side of this access. Thereafter, the sole
means of vehicular and pedestrian access to the development shall be via the new
access.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

Within 3 months of the first use of the new access by vehicular traffic (other than
construction traffic), the exisitng access to the site from "Bridleway 15 Sharcott Drove"
shall be closed-off within the site to prevent access by vehicles other than to Sharcott
Pennings Farm farmhouse. The method of closure shall comprise a fence or bollards
(or other means first agreed in writing by the local planning authority). The method of
closure shall be permenently retained thereafter.

REASON:
In the interests of highway safety.

Page 39



20 This decision relates to documents/plans submitted with the application, listed below.
No variation from the approved documents should be made without the prior approval
of this Council. Amendments may require the submission of a further application.
Failure to comply with this advice may lead to enforcement action which may require
alterations and/or demolition of any unauthorised buildings or structures and may also
lead to prosecution.

Drawing nos. 090805-02A (04/10) & 2405/3 (04/10) received by the Ipa 23/04/10;

Drawing nos. 011, 012, 013, 014 & 015 (12/09), & 090805-01 (although re-configured
layout) (09/09) received by the Ipa 14/01/10.

Appendices: None
Background Documents Used in the The application file, development plan and
Preparation of this Report: relevant government guidance.

Page 40



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6a E/10/0107/FUL - Full planning application for: Retrospective change of use of land and buildings for the parking and storage of vehicles, plant and equipment pending preparation for sale or export. Improvements to road junction. At: Bromham House Farm, Devizes Road, BROMHAM SN15 2DX
	6b E/10/0071/FUL - Full planning application for: Demolition of existing beef cattle buildings and replacement with new dairy complex and agriculturally tied dwelling. At:: Sharcott Pennings Farm, Wilcot Road PEWSEY

